GENTING SINGAPORE LIMITED (the "Company") Registered in the Republic of Singapore Company Registration Number: 201818581G

Minutes of the Thirty-Ninth Annual General Meeting (the "**Meeting**") held at Resorts World Ballroom West, Resorts World Convention Centre, Basement 2, 8 Sentosa Gateway, Resorts World Sentosa, Singapore 098269 on Thursday, 18 April 2024 at 10.00 a.m.

Present

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay ("Chairman")ExMr Tan Hee Teck ("Mr Tan")CMs Chan Swee Liang CarolinaLeMr Tan Wah Yeow ("Mr Tan WY")IrMr Jonathan AshersonIrMr Hauw Sze Shiung Winston ("Mr Hauw")Ir

Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer Lead Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer
Chief Corporate Officer
Company Secretary

By Invitation

Mr Lee Chian Yorn Mr Andrew Teoh Audit Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Scrutineer, T S Tay Public Accounting Corporation

Shareholders and Invitees

As set out in the attendance record maintained by the Company.

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay presided as the Chairman of the Meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the Chairman welcomed shareholders to the Meeting. He introduced the Board of Directors present and informed shareholders that the Company Secretary, the Company's senior management and the Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, were also present.

The Chairman confirmed that a quorum in accordance with the Company's Constitution was present and declared the Meeting open. He proposed that the Notice of Annual General Meeting convening the Meeting be taken as read. To commence the formal order of the business of the Meeting, the Chairman had put all Resolutions for the Meeting on the table. He informed shareholders that for the conduct of the poll, T S Tay Public Accounting Corporation had been appointed as Scrutineers for the Meeting. A video clip explaining the e-polling procedures was shown at the Meeting. The Chairman informed that to facilitate the voting process, voting had opened and would be closed 12 seconds after each Resolution had been put to a vote.

The Chairman informed shareholders that they had been given the opportunity to submit their questions by 5.00 p.m. on 8 April 2024 in advance of the Meeting and the Company had on 12 April 2024 published its responses to the questions on SGXNet and on the Company's website. He invited shareholders to ask questions which were related to the Resolutions tabled for approval at the Meeting after Mr Tan's presentation.

The Chairman invited Mr Tan to give shareholders an update of the key events in 2023 and the latest developments relating to the Resorts World Sentosa ("**RWS**") Integrated Resort ("**IR**") and the Company.

After the presentation, Mr Tan handed over the proceedings back to the Chairman.

(The slides presented by Mr Tan at the Annual General Meeting have been made available on SGXNet and the Company's website at the URL <u>https://www.gentingsingapore.com/#!/en/investors/annual-reports</u>.)

The Chairman informed shareholders that the Board would proceed to address applicable questions from shareholders during the Meeting, which were related to the Resolutions tabled for approval at the Meeting. The Chairman invited shareholders to ask questions relating to any of the Resolutions. He informed shareholders that the Board would close the question-and-answer segment of the Meeting before moving on to vote on the Resolutions, and that the Board would not be taking any further questions when the voting on the Resolutions commenced. The Chairman requested for shareholders to identify themselves before asking questions. Chairman also requested, in due consideration of the interests of other shareholders, that shareholders limit their questions to a reasonable number and length and to matters that were relevant to the agenda for the Meeting.

A shareholder commended the Board and Management for the Company's strong financial performance. He also noted the impressive growth of the non-gaming sector, reaching approximately one-third of total revenue compared to previous years. He then enquired about the Company's strategy for utilising the retained earnings. He also sought clarification on whether the depreciation figure in the income statement already accounted for the capitalised costs associated with the RWS 2.0 project.

Mr Tan explained that the net profit figure accounted for depreciation. He added that RWS is progressively refreshing and redeveloping some of its existing assets. Taking Hotel Ora as an example, the hotel was not fully depreciated as hotels normally have a long life of 15-20 years. The asset refreshment was intended to attract more affluent visitors to the integrated resort, and as such, there is a need to upgrade the integrated resort's hotels to that standard. Hence, there will be an acceleration in depreciation to take into account the shortening of the assets' useful life.

The shareholder asked if the Company can pay more generous dividends in light of the Company's strong cash flow and positive performance. He suggested that the Company raise the dividend from \$0.02 to \$0.035 per share and also explore the possibility of increasing interim dividends. The shareholder continued by commenting that the media frequently cited a strong correlation between the Company's performance and the Chinese tourist market. For example, when the news of visa-free travel between China and Singapore was released, the media commented that the Company would do well. Recently, there was the warning by the Chinese Embassy in Singapore for Chinese citizens to stay away from gambling. The shareholder asked for clarification on the Company's actual level of dependence on the Chinese market and its impact on the Company's performance.

Mr Tan shared that pre-COVID, the number of visitors from India was the highest among RWS's visitor source markets and China was the second highest. This was followed very closely by Indonesia, Malaysia and Philippines. This year, the number of visitors is expected to recover to or surpass pre-COVID levels. While RWS is not dependent on any single visitor source market, each of these markets contributes significantly to the Company's performance. While Asia will always remain the most significant market for the Company's business, he expressed its commitment to geographical diversification.

The shareholder further sought clarification on the significant increase in trade receivables and provision for bad debts compared to the previous year, and enquired if the amount to be written off is going to have a significant impact on the Company's profit. The shareholder noted that the Company does not use junkets like in other jurisdictions, and asked about the effectiveness of RWS's collection procedures, given that there may be people who incur gambling debts with no intention of repayment.

Mr Tan responded that the Company adheres to the relevant accounting standards in assessing and making provisions for bad debts. Notwithstanding such provision, the Company will continue its efforts to recover the debts. He added that Management looks very carefully at the granting of credit and the management of trade receivables. While granting of credit is necessary to drive revenue, Management has to be prudent and pragmatic to ensure that there will be a reasonable chance of collection. Striking a balance between the two is both an art and a science.

The shareholder asked if the significant increase in trade receivables and provision of bad debts was solely a result of an increase in growth in business, and should not be a cause for concern. Mr Tan responded that this was largely due to the overall business growth. Chairman added that the issue of trade receivables and bad debts is something which the Company constantly monitors as part of the gaming business. In this connection, Management is focused on managing credit risk while ensuring proper audits.

The shareholder further asked if some of the write off of trade receivables for financial year 2022 was attributed to an associate of a controlling shareholder. Chairman clarified that the controlling shareholder of the Company does not get involved with the Company's business operations or its dealings with trade creditors or bad debt. The controlling shareholder is just like any other shareholder.

Another shareholder enquired about the Company's plans for growth beyond RWS 2.0, specifically regarding geographical diversification. He referenced recent news reports suggesting the possibility of casino licence bids in Thailand and expressed interest in understanding how the Company's cash reserves would be used to fund these potential expansions. He also requested more details on the Board's and CEO's vision for long-term growth, including potential involvement in ventures like the Thailand casino project. He emphasised the importance of this information for shareholders to understand the impact on future cash flow and dividend policies.

Chairman commented that the bidding process is a very long one. He cited the Company's experience with respect to the Japan casino licence bid, which until today has not yet been implemented. In this regard, he felt that the Board's decision, on the basis of Management's advice, not to proceed with the Japan project was the right one.

The Company's focus is now on RWS 2.0 and the Company cannot be totally reliant on the gaming business. Until there is more visibility on the terms and conditions for legalising gaming in other jurisdictions such as Thailand, the Company will continue to monitor what is happening outside of the home market. The Board and Management are of the view that RWS 2.0 will result in a better performance and better return for shareholders. As and when the Company comes upon a new opportunity outside of its core business in Singapore, it will update on progress.

Mr Tan added that it was still early days for the Thai casino licence process. The Thai gaming legislation passed recently was still very general and lacked specific detail on rules and regulations and the bidding process. It would be necessary for crucial details to be firmed up such as locations and whether local residents would be allowed to gamble or not, before the Company can decide if it should consider a bid.

A shareholder asked if the Singapore government would have any influence in the Company's expansion strategy, for example into Thailand or the United Arab Emirates ("**UAE**"). Also, within the broader Genting group, who would make the decision as to which entity in the Genting group would bid for a license around the world.

Chairman responded that firstly, the Company operates as a standalone entity with an independent Board of Directors that makes decisions regarding potential investments without influence from the broader Genting group. Secondly, Chairman believes that the Singapore government will generally not interfere with investment decisions of its corporate citizens. However, given that the Company's gaming business in Singapore is heavily regulated, it is to be expected that the Company's decisions on foreign ventures will be subjected to scrutiny and review, and may be impacted by the need for partners to meet Singapore regulatory standards for probity.

In respect of the Company's future growth strategy, Chairman shared that in Singapore, the government's bid conditions were for an IR, and not just for a casino. Similarly, for RWS 2.0, a big part of the investment should not be viewed as casino expansion but an expansion of non-gaming offerings in alignment with Singapore's strategy to become an event-driven tourist destination. There is a landscape change in global gaming industry and he expects that more countries would follow the Singapore example in favouring IR developments. In this respect, the Company is well positioned, due to it being a Singapore company and its experience with IRs, to pursue IR project bids. For investment into UAE, Chairman noted that an international tender for a casino only development is unlikely. The Company would be happy to work on an IR development in the Middle East, leveraging the Company's experience in non-gaming offerings.

Chairman advised shareholders to not just look at the gaming part of the business. The Singapore government is making the right decision in positioning Singapore to become an event-driven centre, for example, by bringing in events such as the Taylor Swift concert. The Company would be very wise to follow the direction and play a part in it. Chairman reiterated that the Company is very well placed to take advantage of the anticipated growth in tourism. With RWS 2.0, the Company is well invested to ride along with how Singapore is transforming itself into a bigger tourist destination.

Lastly, Chairman commended the Board members and Management team for their experience and cautious and prudent approach. He also expressed his sincere gratitude to the shareholders and said that it was their continued faith in the Company which gives the Board and Management more motivation to continue in the course.

A shareholder asked about the increase in budget for RWS 2.0 from \$4.5 billion to \$6.8 billion, and requested for a breakdown. He also asked for clarification on the timeline for completion of the project, as he had read in the Chairman's Statement that the Company would spend the \$6.8 billion over the next 8 years.

Mr Tan clarified that the increase in RWS 2.0 costs was largely due to costs escalation since the pandemic. The \$4.5 billion amount was announced about four years ago. Since then, a lot has happened. For example, migrant workers are now required to work in specially designed dormitories, which adds to the cost of labour. In addition, cost of materials have gone up substantially and there are other compliance related costs such as building protection measures against potential terrorist attacks. Renovation costs would be included in normal capital expenditures on a year-to-year basis. As for the time frame, as shown in the video presentation displayed along the passageway before entering the AGM meeting room, the waterfront building is scheduled to start construction before the end of this year, and parts of the IR will progressively open all the way until around 2029/2030.

Another shareholder asked on the possibility of re-introducing attractions season passes for local residents. Mr Tan explained that the Company discontinued season passes with the intention to increase revenue as season passes generate lower yield per individual visitor. He shared that non-gaming revenue, particularly from Universal Studios Singapore (USS) and the S.E.A Aquarium, has not recovered to pre-COVID levels. Once those businesses return to pre-COVID levels, the Company would revisit the possibility of re-introducing the season pass programme with some re-modelling. He concluded by expressing the need to balance shareholders' interest with attracting local visitors.

Another shareholder inquired about the possibility of the Company exploring time-sharing projects as a potential source of revenue. Mr Tan commented that such projects may not be permitted under RWS's agreement with the Singapore government. Chairman added that in any case, the Board and Management are always open to exploring new business opportunities which are deemed beneficial. He cited the example of Genting Hotel Jurong ("GHJ"). While initially envisioned as having some connection to the main resort in Sentosa, GHJ has since become a fully standalone and highly profitable venture. This successful off-site investment exemplifies the potential for profitable ventures beyond the resort complex and beyond gaming. Chairman reassured shareholders that the Board is committed to exploring all possibilities to increase returns to shareholders.

There being no further questions from the shareholders, the Chairman proceeded to go through the Resolutions tabled at the Meeting.

A. ROUTINE BUSINESS

1. RESOLUTION 1: RECEIPT AND ADOPTION OF DIRECTORS' STATEMENT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 AND THE AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

- 1.1 The first item on the Agenda was to adopt and receive the Directors' Statement and Audited Financial Statements and Auditor's Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.
- 1.2 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	Fo	r	Agai	nst
shares represented	Number of	As a	Number of	As a
by votes for and	Shares	percentage of	Shares	percentage of
against the		total number		total number
Resolution		of votes for		of votes for
		and against		and against
		the Resolution		the Resolution
		(%)		(%)
8,645,597,955	8,639,147,860	99.93	6,450,095	0.07

2. RESOLUTION 2: FINAL ONE-TIER TAX EXEMPT DIVIDEND OF \$0.02 PER ORDINARY SHARE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

- 2.1 Resolution 2 was to approve a Final Dividend of \$0.02 per ordinary share for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.
- 2.2 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	Fo	r	Agai	nst
shares represented by votes for and	Number of Shares	As a percentage of	Number of Shares	As a percentage of
against the Resolution		total number of votes for		total number of votes for
		and against		and against
		the Resolution		the Resolution
		(%)		(%)
8,646,769,887	8,645,859,887	99.99	910,000	0.01

Based on the results of the poll, the Chairman declared the Resolution carried.

2.3 The Chairman informed the Meeting that as announced by the Company on 17 April 2024, the books would close at 5.00 p.m. on 3 May 2024 until 5.00 p.m. on 6 May 2024 for the purpose of determining shareholders' entitlements to the dividend. The dividend would be paid on 24 May 2024.

3. RESOLUTION 3: RE-ELECTION OF MR TAN WAH YEOW AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

- 3.1 Resolution 3 was to approve the re-election of Mr Tan Wah Yeow as a Director of the Company pursuant to Regulation 112 of the Company's Constitution. It was noted that Mr Tan WY had consented to continue in office.
- 3.2 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	Fo	r	Agai	nst
shares represented by votes for and against the Resolution	Number of Shares	As a percentage of total number of votes for and against the Resolution (%)	Number of Shares	As a percentage of total number of votes for and against the Resolution (%)
8,645,616,307	8,500,708,814	98.32	144,907,493	1.68

4. RESOLUTION 4: RE-ELECTION OF MR HAUW SZE SHIUNG WINSTON AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

- 4.1 Resolution 4 was to approve the re-election of Mr Hauw Sze Shiung Winston as a Director of the Company pursuant to Regulation 112 of the Company's Constitution. It was noted that Mr Hauw had consented to continue in office.
- 4.2 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	Fo	r	Agai	nst
shares represented by votes for and against the Resolution	Number of Shares	As a percentage of total number of votes for and against	Number of Shares	As a percentage of total number of votes for and against
		the Resolution (%)		the Resolution (%)
8,647,288,107	8,643,232,614	99.95	4,055,493	0.05

Based on the results of the poll, the Chairman declared the Resolution carried.

5. RESOLUTION 5(A): DIRECTORS' FEES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2024

- 5.1 Resolution 5(a) was to approve Directors' fees of up to \$2,049,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2024.
- 5.2 The Chairman explained that the Directors' fees are computed based on the anticipated number of Directors, as well as Board and Board Committee meetings, for the financial year ending 31 December 2024, assuming full attendance by all the Directors.
- 5.3 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	Fo	r	Agai	nst
shares represented by votes for and against the Resolution	Number of Shares	As a percentage of total number of votes for and against the Resolution (%)	Number of Shares	As a percentage of total number of votes for and against the Resolution (%)
8,629,288,207	8,622,790,227	99.92	6,497,980	0.08

6. **RESOLUTION 5(B): ORDINARY SHARES FOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS**

- 6.1 Resolution 5(b) was to approve the awards of 125,000 ordinary shares to Independent Non-Executive Directors.
- 6.2 The Chairman explained that the each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors will be granted 125,000 share awards pursuant to the Genting Singapore Performance Share Scheme. Vesting of the share awards is subject to satisfaction of service condition of one year from date of grant and will be subject to the Independent Non-Executive Directors being in service at the point of vesting. The Independent Non-Executive Directors will be subject to a selling moratorium pursuant to which each of whom will be required to hold the equivalent of one year's basic retainer fees during his or her tenure as a Director.
- 6.3 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	Fo	r	Agai	nst
shares represented	Number of	As a	Number of	As a
by votes for and	Shares	percentage of	Shares	percentage of
against the		total number		total number
Resolution		of votes for		of votes for
		and against		and against
		the Resolution		the Resolution
		(%)		(%)
8,646,062,507	7,260,216,039	83.97	1,385,846,468	16.03

Based on the results of the poll, the Chairman declared the Resolution carried.

7. RESOLUTION 6: RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

- 7.1 Resolution 6 was to approve the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("**PwC**") as Auditor of the Company until the next AGM and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration. It was noted that PwC had expressed its willingness to continue in office.
- 7.2 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	For		Agai	nst
shares represented	Number of	As a	Number of	As a
by votes for and	Shares	percentage of	Shares	percentage of
against the		total number		total number
Resolution		of votes for		of votes for
		and against		and against
		the Resolution		the Resolution
		(%)		(%)
8,647,213,107	8,512,495,927	98.44	134,717,180	1.56

The Chairman informed shareholders that the Company had not received any notice for any other routine business and proceeded to deal with the special business of the Meeting.

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS

8. RESOLUTION 7: PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE GENERAL MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

- 8.1 Resolution 7 was to approve the proposed renewal of the General Mandate for Interested Person Transactions.
- 8.2 As the Chairman was deemed interested in the Proposed Interested Person Transactions comprised in the General Mandate, he shall abstain from voting on the Resolution in respect of his direct and indirect shareholdings in the Company. In light of this, the Chairman passed the chair to Mr Tan WY, Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee.
- 8.3 Mr Tan WY put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	For		Aga	ainst
shares represented	Number of Shares	As a	Number of	As a
by votes for and		percentage of	Shares	percentage of
against the		total number		total number
Resolution		of votes for		of votes for
		and against		and against
		the Resolution		the Resolution
		(%)		(%)
2,293,478,638	2,282,316,689	99.51	11,161,949	0.49

Based on the results of the poll, Mr Tan WY declared the Resolution carried.

8.4 Mr Tan WY then passed the chair back to the Chairman.

9. RESOLUTION 8: PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE SHARE BUY-BACK MANDATE

- 9.1 The last item on the Agenda was to approve the proposed renewal of the Share Buy-Back Mandate.
- 9.2 The Chairman put the motion to vote. The results of the poll were as follows:

Total number of	For		Aga	inst
shares represented	Number of	As a	Number of	As a
by votes for and	Shares	percentage of	Shares	percentage of
against the		total number		total number
Resolution		of votes for		of votes for
		and against		and against
		the Resolution		the Resolution
		(%)		(%)
8,648,091,488	8,624,341,383	99.73	23,750,105	0.27

Based on the results of the poll, the Chairman declared the Resolution carried.

C. CONCLUSION OF MEETING

There being no other business to transact, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed at 11.52 a.m.

TAN SRI LIM KOK THAY CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING